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The late Renais.sajacje, style Custom House is a symmetrical 5-story, rectanj 
ular building 265 ft. by 117 ft. The steel frame rests on concrete founda­ 
tions supported on wood piling. The exterior materials are cut granite 
base and a facing of gray Madera granite slabs on upper stories. The two 
L-shaped light courts which bring light to central halls and interior offices 
are faced with white glazed brick. The hipped roof, covered with slate laid 
on sheet metal, is hidden behind a balustrade above the cornice. The en­ 
trances on Battery and Washington Sts. have double bronze doors with 
detail in relief; above the rectangular openings are balustrades and carved 
stone ornament. Other carved stone is on the faces of the building, none 
projecting beyond the cornice.

Interior floors and walls of the central halls and corridors are white Italian 
marble, with black Belgian marble, edging and strips on the floors. The 
case work throughout is white oak, varnished; the reveals of doors to office 
are paneled in white oak.

The prostrated base floor was originally used for post office and others 
offices where accessibility to street was desirable, with customs offices on 
the main floor at second level. A large central lobby (approx. 48 ft. by 
28 ft. ) occurring on all floors has double staircases in open wells at north 
and south ends. There were three elevators at the west side of the central 
lobby, one eliminated in 1950, the two remaining ones replaced in 1958 by 
ones with stainless steel doors. Flanking the stairs are the L-shaped light 
courts. The north light court was roofed over at ground level before 1948 
for use as a storage room, a door having been cut from a window for en­ 
trance, and the marble framing extended to the floor; in 1955 the storage 
ro'bm was turned into a snack bar, with tables and vending machines. 
Tucked away in a residual space, the L-shaped addition is not offensive 
except for the poor taste and quality of materials.

The Deputy Collector's office, entered from either side of the bank of ele­ 
vators on the main floor, is approx. 100 ft. by 42 ft. with curved end walls. 
At the center of the ceiling was originally a skylight but after considerable 
leakage it was roofed over (before 1948) and fluorescent lights installed be­ 
tween roof and glazing. A free-form high counter separating public from 
staff space was before 1948 changed to a rectangular form to enlarge staff 
space; this change partially conceals the round arched doors and pilasters, 
Murals were painted on the end walls before 1915 by_.A.LJL*. Cooper. At the 
same time he added abstract floral decorations between the groins and 
around the skylights and on the same floor, a frieze in the office of admin­ 
istrator of customs. Early published plans show two small administrative 
offices at the southeast corner, most likely changed to one large room be­ 
fore construction since the frieze shows no patching. Before 1948 the large 
sub-treasury clerks' office next to administrative office was partitioned.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The handsome 1911 granite-faced Custom House was the first large building 
on which construction started in San Francisco after the 1906 earthquake 
and fire, and one of the few surviving good examples of late Renaissance 
federal architecture in the west. The sober taste, fine materials and 
workmanship of exteriors and interiors, and the state of preservation are 
unusual; relatively few changes have been made to degrade it aesthetically.

A neo-classical custom house was demolished to clear the site, and grading 
was under way when the fire broke out. Ground was broken July 29, 1906, 

y but the unprecedented amount of building caused a labor shortage and it 
was 1911 before completed and occupied. The concrete foundations of the 
steel-framed building rest on timbers taken from the hull of the steamship 
Georgian, a vessel that in Gold Rush days had been deserted and was drawn 
up to the Washington St. wharf.

The commission for the design was won in a competition by the St. Louis 
architects William S. Eames and Thomas C. Young; Eames was then presi- 
den,t t of-the, Apaerican Institute of Architects, and his fir.rn .had,. Resigned 
other federal buildings.

A splendid architectural^ea'ture is the ample central lobby with1 marble 
stairs at the north and south ends, especially fine at the main level whe re 
the symmetrical double stairs with open well, high ceilings with plaster 
work, and a baroque pattern outlined in the white marble floor distinguish 
the elegant space. Another architectural accomplishment is the Deputy 
Collector's office on the main floor; curved end walls with round-arched 
doors flanked by pilasters; the groined ceiling, painted in abstract floral 
patterns; two skylights. For the 1915 Pan Pacific International Exposition, 
A. L. Cooper painted murals on the end walls: "The Panama Canal and its 
Construction, " and "San Francisco Harbor." Other notable details: orna­ 
mental plaster work, bronze wall lamps in lobbies, furniture designed by 
the architect in the customs administrative office, and a frieze and marble 
fire place in the same room.
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U.S. CUSTOM HOUSE, 1911
555 Battery Street, San Francisco, Cal, 04
Lat. 37° 47' 1&« <A£ "
Long. 122° 23' 58"
Map source: Survey of Custom House Block, 1904
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